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RFP:  Open Meeting 

When whales issue an RFP (or RFQ or RFI), they often host an Open Meeting for prospective 
bidders.  Government entities are typically required to have such a meeting, but many corporate 
procurement officers will hold that meeting as well.  

The Open Meeting is both an opportunity and a trap.  I suggest you approach it as your first 
strategic activity of this particular RFP process.  Let's assume first that this is a face-to-face 
meeting among the whale and the bidders. (More about the "virtual meeting" later).    Here are 
your strategic decisions:  

1. Who will represent your company? You need a person (two or three, if permitted) who can 
read the room, recognize the competitors, spot insiders who may not be introduced, remember 
names, interpret roles and power positions, take excellent notes, and listen for the real answers, 
not just what you may want to hear.  

2. How will you prepare your team (your boat)? Discuss your ground rules, such as these:  

Discovery/Disclosure: the whale should disclose, you should discover. Direct your team to bring 
back key information. Who is at the Buyers' Table? Is it only procurement or are the end users 
involved? Is there a pre-screening committee or consultant, and if so who are they? Are the 
technical buyers present? Who are they? Is there an approved budget? Will they tell you what it 
is?  

Chips: information constitutes your chips. Leave the meeting with more chips than you brought 
in.  

Ego: resist the urge to seem important. Keep quiet and let your competitors talk.  

3. What Power Questions will your team ask? Be explicit about what your team will attempt 
to learn in this session. For example,  

• Who is the end user of your product or service? How and when can you meet that person, 
team, or department?  

• What do you mean by ........................... in the RFP?  

• Why are you seeking to change providers at this time?  

• What problem are you trying to solve through this RFP?  

If you are the incumbent provider at an Open Meeting, you are extremely vulnerable.  When a 
competitor asks a technical question, the moderator can easily turn to you--"Frank, you've been 
doing this for us--what do you think?"  Don't be caught off guard or without a conciliatory 
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response.  First, do not send your company's account manager to that meeting.  Announce "He is 
unavailable; she is out of town."  Don't send anyone who will feel compelled to answer on your 
behalf.  You're not sure, you'll get back to them, whatever. You need to show up to confirm your 
interest, to listen, and to learn.  But you don't need to spill your beans in the lobby.  

What should you do as an incumbent provider?  Ask a few "big picture" questions that will have 
harmless answers.  Don't ask any questions that will betray your insider knowledge or 
experience.  Stay far away from issues of cost/pricing.  Recognize that your historical good 
relationship is a competitive advantage.  Find ways to leverage that, and wrap your RFP response 
in the relationship.  

Sometimes the Open Meeting is a period of Open Inquiry, during which all prospective bidders 
can ask questions and receive answers via email and/or an online environment.  The protocol 
typically dictates that both questions and answers are circulated among all prospective bidders.  
When it's all in writing, you need to be even more strategic.  Don't raise any kind of question to 
which the answer can give your competitors an advantage.  Sometimes the savvy it takes to ask a 
pertinent question will give less creative bidders an idea that you'd rather keep for yourself.  

Finally, use the Open Meeting as a chance to explore some of the" Dirty Dozen" RFP practices.  
Is their objective clear?  Do they have a budget?  Will you have access to the end users?  Is the 
number of respondents limited?  Do the invitees look like you?  Is it clear what problem they are 
trying to solve?  

I have found that companies typically attend the Open Meeting without much forethought.  
Approaching it strategically will give you an edge--the information you need that tells you to 
fold, or the knowledge that will help you win.  

 

Barbara Weaver Smith 


